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The 150 year history of Cedar Grove hés been a progression towards
a centralized church and state, and a decline of the inflcence of thc
congregation an& community. It-has been an evolution from an individual-
istic to a corporate society. Thé'indiﬁidualism'rooted-itself before the
ClVll War. The Methodist Protestant Church (Cedar Grove's denomination) -
formed due to their concern for 1nd1vidual rights. Socthernireligion

dwelt on emotional experiences, ev1dences of contact with God. The pri—

mary political structure was the farm, because people had little contact

outside of that enviromment. This individualistic culture settled the
\

frontier and thrlved for thirty.years until the Civil War destroyed it.

' 'As the World crumbled around them, the church structure survived the

‘social and political ruim, and provided tbe people of Cedar Grove with

guidance. Since the Church was the major structuredrauthority'in the
South, the Methodist Protestants began to centralize in order to eliminate
an unorganized scramble of numerous congregations going their various

ways. The government moved in the same direction when the economy col-

- lapsed in the 1920s and }305{ The crisis was nationwide, and the only

way out was in a united effort which would prevent individual efforts
from working against each other, This centralizing of authority carried
over into World War II and kept increasing throughout the Cold Wax. *

Today, the intense centralizationm of church and state is a discomforting .

reality for the people of Cedar Grove,

In her 1952 "History of Cedar Grove", Nell Moore wrote, "In the

year 1822 the John B, Morris family traveled in covered wagons from
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Abbeville County, S. C. to Henry Co. Georgia and purchased land lot No.

.11 in the Fifteenth District from the original land grant holder, one

1
‘Henry Meachamp, Sr. on Nov. 2lst of that year.'"  She lists Morris as one

of éhé founders of Morris Church (later Cedar Grove) and four of his sous, .
Rev. G. Wérr Morris, .Rev. Elijah Morris, Garrett L. Morris, and Joseph
Morris, alomg with Allen J. Cook and John Moore.2 But in 1828 when the
log chapél was erected and dedicated, Joseph (who was not Joseph, butl

a younger John B.) was 12, Garrett 10, é. Watt 7; and Elijahl2. Cook
was 10, and although ﬁoore wés 14, he had not yet arrived from Ireland.3
Nor is it certain that all four Morris boys were sons of Morris. Imn the
1820 census of Abbeville County, the household of John Morrls lists only
two boys, both over 16, and none under that age, but at that time both

John B. and Garrett were under 10. However, immediately following Morris

on the census list is the household of Pleasant Morris, perhaps a sister—

in-law. She lists two boys under ten. Three names above Morris is the
‘ ‘ _ :
household of Phillip Cook. Young Allen J. could have come from this

family. .At any rate, portions of two or three of these families migrated

. to Henry County, Georgia in 1822, where six years later they built a

church.
This was a period of American history whem frontier land was sold at

remarkably low prices, provided that portions be -homesteaded. 1In 1821

. unsettled Henry County was divided into land lots of 220 acres and offer-

ed in a land lottery.5 Henry Meachamp Sr. took land lot 11, but within
the year had to sell it. Morris bought it, and the family set up camp in
a clearing until shelters could be construéted; They lived as piloneers,
feeding themselves on the land's wild resources until they could clear

forest, plant their crops, and gradually settle intc farm 1ife. The
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family resumed the agricultural chores, and after six years completed

. their permanent home.

Southern families like the Morrises were tightly organlzed each

- member with an understood 9051t10n of authority and set of respon51b111w

ties. John Morris was head of the household, and organlzed the estate.

While women often did "men's work", such as plowing, men seldom lowered -

themselves to work they considered a woman's responsitility, so Morris
yielded the authority of these household duties to his wife, who carried
the second position of authority, The children followed in rank with

their respective chores, and the slaves (Morris never ownad more than

‘three) filled the bottom position;7

Wlthln a decade the Morrlses saw their country settle from a
frontier to an agrlcultural communlty. By 1820 the Cherokees had been
driven across the Chattahoocﬁee, and by 1838 would be in Oklahoma.8

With the populatlon increase follow1ng the land lottery, DeKalb County

" had to be formed in 1822 from portlons of Henry, Gwinnett, and Fayette

Counties.9 By 1830 the population of DeKalb was 10, 074, or 37 people
per square mile, This population remained about the same for fifty
years.lo Morris answered his civie call in the new county by becomlng
a justice of the peace in 1826.11 |

Morris not only pioneered DeKalb County, but also the Methodist
Protestant Church of Georgia. ‘Methodist Protestants splintered off of ,
the Methodist Episcopal Churdh, forming their own denomination in 1828,
the same year Morris Church was built., They had not.wanted to create a
new church, but reform the old one. They demanded that the iaity be rep~

resented at annual and general conferences, and objected to the uncheck-

ed power of Bishops. When the Bishops demanded that they cease their
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calls for reform, they refused and were expelled from the Methodist Epis-

_copal Church., When the Methodist Protestants adopted their constitution

in 1830, the laity had equal representation with the ciergy at all con-

ferences, ministers were on an equal b331s, and there werg no blShOpS.lz

Although the conflict centered in Baltimore, the sympathy for those ex-
pelled was'nationwide. Georgia established twelve Methodist Protestant
churches thaﬁ vear, and one of them was built by the Morrises.13 Otherr
than these governmental changes, the Methodist Protestants were as Wes~
leyan as the Methodist Episcopals in their doqtrine‘and tha expregsion
of their faith. |

By 1828 a uniquely American style of religion had deveioped oa the.
frontier. Although the Southern ancestors had been predomlnantly Scotch~
Presbyterlan or Church of England, by 1800 that herltage had been forgot—
ten, with only 5% of all Southerners aligning themsgelves Wlth a particular.
faith.14 The Furopean styled denominations had failed to progréss beyond
the. coastal cities because tbeir religion only suited the nee&s of a cul-
tufe& society.ls Around 1800 the Second Great Awakening swept the country,
feeding the religious needs of the American frontier. The dynamo of the
movement was the camp meetxng, held in famlllar woodsy settings and char-
acterlzed by dramatic emotional conver31ons One person described the
new converts as being "seized with the 'jerks, running, dancing, and
barking, and; most commonly with attacks in which with plercing screams®
they fell on the floor or ground' seemingly dead..., the sobs, shrieks,
;r shouts, bursting from persons under intense agitation of mind, the
sudden spasms which seized upon scores, and unexpectedly dashed them to
the ground."16

Although these wild gesticulations subsided somewhat, outward
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emotional expression became established as necessary symbols of faith.

. The 1851 minutes of the Georgia Annual Conference of the Methodist Pro-

testant Church contain an obituary for Rev. Thomas O. Adair who had diéd
at age 31. A fellow prea;her wrote the obituary, repo;t@ﬁg Adair's death
bed words.and the accompanying actions. '"'Oh brother, if you could once
see the glorie of the upper ﬁorld as I do, this.earth could offer you no |
charmes!" He then spent some minutes shouting and praising God.... An&
with-iifted hands he pra&ed, 'Lord givé me patience and resighation to
thy will.' which were the last words he spoke."17_ Thé jérkipg and bark-

ing of 1800 had evolved into shouting and praising by 1851, but both

describe‘the'type of outward emotional expression of individual faith

that was-tfpical in the South‘ﬁhen ﬂotfis Church was built.

Aé the Southern frontier éettlad into ﬁgricultural communities, a
sociél s£ructure developed, based on-agriqultural prestige, large ﬁlan—
tation owners claimed the top qf_the'social order, followed by fa;mers
like the Morrises who owned small amounts of land, followed by poor
whites who owned no land, The Black slaves occupied:the bottom of the
caste system. | |

The Panthersville area {the small militia district in southwest

" DeKalb County containing Morris Church) was iargely middle class in 1860.

A Southern householder valued over $10,bOO was considered fadirly wealthy,
and Panthersville contained only éleven.men worth more. The youngef .
John B. Morris approached that figure with $9,085, Garrett was worth
$5,300, and Elijah, with $4,000 was just under the Panther;ville average
of $4,200, George Watt (he and Elijah were both preachers by this time)
had only $1,100, Allen J. Cock valued.himself at $3,000, and John Moore

at $3,600.
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Social position could not always be based on land. Even in the

‘highly agricultural Panthersville District, lO%qu the heads of house-

holds were employed outside of the farm. Most of these owned no land,

but .received enough of an income to maintain a middle class lifestyle,

Neither James.C..Avery, an M. D. worth $20,800,. nor Charles Murphey, an

._Qttorney whose wealth of $43,000 made him the richest man in the Panthers-

viile District, owned vast plantations, but were no doubt members of the
upper class, and exceptions to the agricultural basgd caste sttemslgl
But fi#e years later the Panthersville District'was in ruins., On
November 14; 15, and 16, 1864, the 17ﬁh Army Cofps of‘Tennessee, a Division
of Sherman's forces, marched through the farms of Pantheréville.zo Nell
Moore relates a story from that time.
"...during Sherman's march through Georgia,.a regiment of the Union
Army camped on the hillside around the Morris: Church....
When the enemy's soldiers came to the Morris well for water,
. Huldah; with a prayer in her heart, went to the officer telling him of
the iliness there and asking for protection fof the niéht.... The off-
,icerlpromiged to send a guard for the home, which he did, and as Huldah
took up her vigil inside the front windoﬁ, and watched the armed'figufe
move back and forth in the cold moonlight she thanked God for her good.
fortune and wished for the day.”21
Huldah Morris' story of Union mercy conflicted with the story in the
census of 1870, ¥rom 1860 to 1870 the average value of personal estates
was deflated by 86%, and the averape cash value of the farms dropped 44%.
The people of Panthersville lost over 707 of their 1ivestock, wheat and
corn were down 60%, cotton, wood, and sweet potatoes were down 80%, and

the loss in butter production was 93%.22
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The Georgila Annual Conference was surprisingly silent about the war,
making no official prbnouncements. Their attitude would seem teo indicate
that they felt no patriotism, and considered.the war a nuisance to the
church. In 1861 the Southern Methodist Protestants decided to hold tﬁeir
General Conference in Montgomer&, Alabama, because, "iﬂ the present con-
dition of our country it is impracticable to hold the General Conference

n23  Tpe 1864 Georgia__’

«..in the city of Georgtown, District of Columbia....
Annual Conference failed.to meet because of Sherman's march, but the only
comment in the minutes the following year was a footnote on the bottom of
the opening page that read, "Note - The conference failed to convene at
Browns Charch, near Social Circle in 1864 pursuant to adjou:ﬁﬁent, in con-~
sequence of Sherman's expgditiéﬁ over the térritory at the time. The
session in 1865 will therefore incluée the two yéars 1864 and 1865.h2§
Even when destruction came to their land, the church maintained the prin—
ciple of staying out of social and ﬁolitical affairs. |

But theiﬁ true emotions surfaced in the .obituariss they‘wrote.l In
the 1861 minutes the obituary of P.VOgletfeé read; "ﬁrother Ogletree spoke
often and.eafnestly of:the troubled state of his country, and though an
ardént supporter of his country's honor...his daily prayer was that péace
might‘return to our borders and the chastisemgnt we are suffering for our

sins might be removed."2?

A later obituary for Rev. B. R. Bray, a chaplain
in the Confederate Army read, "The sufferings of his bleeding coungry deep~
ly effected his heart,... He remained in Vicksburg during the seige of
that unfortunate'City. After its surrender he returned to his family
greatly emaciated and in a state of extreme hervoué frustration, He said

that the pestulential atmosphere, the want of food, the...frustrations

endured, had reduced him to his preseat situation; but, thanks to much
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suffering had been able to sce his home once more.... He had frequently
expressed a desire to live long enough to witness the deliverénge of his
country from abolition...."26 |

~To add to the weakened condition of the South following the War,.
vicious money lenders descended on the South, establishing‘é‘ruinous
credit system.27 Any meager profit went to the pocket of the 1oan.shark..
In order to improve the desperate conditions, éome Southern leaders tried
to lure northern industrialists to the South by giving them téx incent-
ives, burdening the Southern farmers with the lions share of the taxes.z

Adding to the Southern crisié following the Civil War was the-perw
plexing problem of what to do with the newly freed slaves, The white
South had no obvious immediate answer. Segregation came gradually over o
generation. Nell Moore tells that at the Morfis Church before the War,
-""Negro slaves went to church with their masters and océupied rear seats
ércvided. They repented and praised God at the same altar ané went home
to plough the good earth together and wait for the lord's blessings, spir-
ituval and material. The Black slave also took his turn at déath with the
- white man and many of them were laid to rest on the hill where his masters
too now lie burz::i_ed."z-9 It is ﬁot knoﬁn when the last Bléck pefson was
buried in Cédar Grove_Cemetary, nor when the last Black person worship%ed
in the church before it became segregated, but before the war, the whites
were not threatened by the presence of the Blacks in their church. After
the War, this attitude Began changing. In 1866 ¥, ﬁ..M. Henderson (Who
wouldlone day be pastor of Cedar Grove Circuit and eventually be burie&
at Cedar Gréve Cemetary) was Chdairman of the Committee on the Interests of -
the Colored Péople for the Georgia Conference, 1In an effnrt to deal with

the Black question, his report to the conference racommended;
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"lst That we tender to the colored people the use of éur church
houses when it will not interfere with any worship of the whites.
2nd That the Com. on Boundaries be instructed to lay'off colored
missions as far as practicable; and that ghg stafioniﬁg coﬁmittee
supply those missions with preachers as far as poséible.
3rd That our ministers be instructed to preach to themrseparately:
and orggnize them into sociéties and churches provided they adopt
our book of discipline,
4th That this conference endorse all efforts to improve their
cﬁndition byrlitefary and religious instructipn and cherish toward
our former slaves the kindest Christian feeling."30 |

In the 1870s the white South gradually conéluded that the solution

was total and complete segregation. The Georgia Conference minutes before

and after the War recorded the appointments of Black ministers to Black

charges, but in 1877 the Conference gave their President authority to
organize the "colored charge into an independent anﬁual conference to be
called ‘the Colored Annual'Conference of Georgia."31

Even thpugh Southern institutions were segregating, maﬁy white
households still listed Black members. In Paﬁtﬁersvilie inA1880, Mat

Richardson worked as a servant for Allen J. Cook. Charles Morris was

Garrett Morris' Black servant; and Wiley Linch was a farm laborer in the

2
“household of the younger Joha B. Morris.3 But eventually segregation

filtered down to the personal level,

with the upheavals following the War, the Panthersvillg district
was reshaped. Farm familiesruprooted by the War had to find new land.
The Moores, Morrises and Cooks remained in the area, but they were joined

by Gunnins, Lynches, Farlows, and Petermans. While the populétion in—
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creased 40% from 1860 to 1870, persons employed outside the farm increased

130%. There were more schoolteachers, carpenters, brick masons, and

millers. There were'ditch diggers, and even a general of a chain gang.
Some men commuted to Atlanta to work as grocers, printers{ or railroéd
men,33 The echanged population resulted in a‘new church; and in 1872 Gar~ -
rett Morris donated a piece of property or land lot 22. A $200 frame
chapel.and a school building were built by the fifty members, but £he old
name ﬁo longer describedlthe new generation, Nell Moore writes, "After
some months Rev, Lige Morris.planted a grove of Cedar trees. In informal
discussion, 'Cedar Grove' was suggested as a name for the new church and
the name stuck."3%
With all of the cultural'transformations, the Methodist circuit
rider system survived the chaos and provided oné bf the few institﬁtioﬁal
orders in the war toin Séuth. Every November at Annual Conference, the
preachers of Georgia were appointed to their circuits for the following
year, They would have a '"charge" of a handful of churches, with a rough
membership of 200-300. The preacher rotated from church to church, leav-
ing the responsibility of the vacant pulpets to the church's ciass or lay
leaders.  The class members were responsible to the class leaders, the

class leaders responsible to the preacher, and the preacher responsiblé

to the conference,35 George Watt Morris and his brother Elijah ware both

~appointed to the DeKalb Circuit, which contained the Morris Church, during

the Civil War, 1In 1860 they had 201 members to work with, 21 of whom wvere
Black, There were five churghes on the circuit valued at $500, As we
have seen, Elijah was worth $4,000 that year, and George Watt was.well
below ghe Panthersville avetage at $1,100. Thedir salaries did not help.

In 1858 the total salaries paid to the DeKalb ministers was $77.00, but
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that was considerably higher than the $17.34 paid in 1854, By 1875 the
DeKalb Circuit was paying: their circuit riders a total of $159.20.36
Morris Church and later Cedar Grove was probably a comparatively important
church, While DeKalb Circuit constantly changed its boundaries, confaiﬁ~
ing at various times Clifton, New Hope, Owl Roék,vStOCkbridge,'Anvil Block,
Atlanta Station, and probably others, Morris Church never.changed circults.
Later, when the church changed its name, the_name of the circuit was
changed to Cedar Grove Circuit. Even though the gntire circuir could send
only one or two delegates to the Annual Conference, they were usually
from Mbrrié/Cedar Grove, The Conference occasionally held its énnual
meetings at Ceda; Grove,.énd some of tﬁe current members can iemember the

cold November meeting they hosted in 1937. Many of the presidents of the

Annual Conference, men such as F. H., M. Henderson, R. S.'MéGarity, C. B.

McDaniel, J. M, Reyrnolds, W. M. Hunton, and even G, W. Morris, had been

ministers of the DeRalb circuit. It is difficult to say if the prestige
of Morris/Cedar Grove Church extended beyond religious influences, for the
churches of that time generally believed in staying out of social and pol-
itical matters, but in 1873-4, Rev. Elijah Morris served a term in the
Georgia House of RepresentaéiVES from Henry County, his place of residence,
The Church found it difficult to stay out of social and pﬁlitical
matters., Dealing in spiritual matters meant condemning the ways of the
world., To be spiritually whole meant to have no moral deficiencies, and
the best way to insure good morality was to rid the culture of the forces
of temptation., 1In order to clean up the world, the Church had to-dirty
its hands in social and political matters, The theory is summed up in this
1892 proclamation of the Temperance Committee of the Georgia Methodist

Protestant Conference, 'United in one earmest and prayerful effort, as.
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parents, as countrymen, and as followers of Christ, let us strike down

this evil @lcohdﬂ that menaces every home and every sacred institution

of our land, and thus hasten the universal reign of our Lord over the

n37

children of men. In order for the Lord to return, and establish his--

{ingdom, the Church f£elt it could meet God half way by cleaning up the
w%gld. Even though they ﬁere against-involving themselﬁes.in social and
political spheres, the Church did so, rationalizing that their actions
were based on spiritual concerns - making the world clean Enoﬁgh for
Christ's return.

Being the watchdog of Christian morals had its roots in the Church
before the Civil War, but they were on more of an individual basis. Each
vear in fhe decade before the War, misconduct charges were made, and
trials cénducted for individuals by the Georgia Conference. In lSSérthe
Committee oflTheology examined the cﬁaract@r of Brother P. Lingo, accused
of béing a universalist, They foﬁnd him guilty but only's;olded him, with
instructions to discontinue discussion and defense of the "Doctrine of the

n38

Destructionist, In 1854 S§. W. Fowler was found guilty of immorality

and malpractice in office, and hié credentials demanded.39

After the War, charges against individuals decreased and the Chufch
made more and more pronouncements, offering guidance for the social behav-
ior of all persons. The individual was beginning to be lcst in the masses.
The prime example of the Church's involvement in social issues was the
temperance committees which succeeded in pressuring Georgia and later the
United States to prbhibit alcohol, After their Georgia success, the
Georgia Conference Temperance Committee tackled tobacco, but failed to

recelve the entire suppert of the Conference. The 1906 Temperence Commit-

tee suggested that the Church work for the abolishment of cigarette smoking,
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refrain from the use of tobacco in every form.

13
and added, "our pastors could be more effective in this if they would

n40 Also dn thét decade

a new "monster"

had found its way into the culture - Coca Cola. The
Temperance Committee of 1911 said that whiskey, near-Eeer and Coca Cola:
were the "worst forms of intewperance we have to deal with, that it causes
more SOLLOW, Blights more lives, widows more wives, orphans‘more children,
erects more Gallowses, digs more graves than any other agency of the
devil.”al

Coca Cola was iny one of the sﬁmptoms of a new culéure. The South
had actually recovered enough from the Civil War to ciaim a certain amoung
of affiluence, The 1911 Annual Conference Pfesident reported, "I am very
much gratified to be able to say this has been a prosﬁérous year for our

w42 pit the Church was also wary of the prosperity,

church in Georgia....
for people participated in leisure activities which distracted them from

the Church. A Sabbath Observance Committee was formed and in 1913 voiced

the church's displeasure. 'Whereas there seems to be much of that spirit

of lawlessness prevailing during these prosperous times, namely Sunday
picnics, going to Soda Founts, going abroad on long trips by rail and
motor for pleasure sake, be it resolved, that we feel the need of urging
each and every citizen, and péstor as well, to co-operate together‘and
secure a more loyal regard for the observation of this day of rest.“43
Even tﬁough the church took conservative stands on the new social
conditions brought about by prosperity, it was not uninfluenced by somé
of the ideals of the new age. When child labor laws were introduced iﬁ
the country, the old attitude that children were to be seen and not heard,

and preferably not seen, was beginning to crumble. In 1912 the President

of the Georgia Conference appealed to the members to begin a separate
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young people;s organization., ''We must utilize our young people or lose
them to' those who will do so. This may appear too modern to some of us,
But it is no less essential.”44 In 1920 Cedar Grove organized the Christ-—

ian Endeavor Society for their youth, and it went by that name until the °

' Methodist Church was formed in 1939, when it became the Methodist Youth

Fellowship.45 By 1924 the Conference reported that the '"Young peoples
46
Tt

work is in excellent condition.

Another indication that the Church was changing its attitudes

‘along with the culture was the increasing involvement of women in the

conference during the time when American women were campaigning for the
vote., 1924 was the first year femaleldelegates attended Annuél Conference,
and the Conferenge subtly changed the title of 1aymen to lay delegqtes.47
A surpriéing deﬁelopmeut only'one year later Qas the presence'amongothe
honorary members of a "Rev.?.ﬁrs. Leila B._Fountain.48

As the need for a strong organization became increasingly important

for the chufch in the years after the Civil War, the leaders of the Meth-

odist Protestant Church felt a weakness in their form of government, In

1851, when one of the founders of the Methodist Protestant Church died,

the minutes of that conference contained a firey oﬂituary, condemning the
Methodist Episcopals and justifying the Reformers. The issue of individ-
ual rights was still important.49 But after that year, nothing is men-
tioned.about the split or its issues. The Methodist Episcopal Church
began changing some of the policies that the refqrmers had objected to in .
1828, such as granting lay participation im the conferences.SO As early

as 1876 the Georgia Conference of Methodist Protestants sent out feelers

to the Methodist Episcopals, exploring the possibility of union.s1 As thg

Methodist Episcopals relaxed some of their previous positions; the Meth-
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odist Protestants began regreting their lack of central power. 1In 1898

‘a report to the annual conference expressed concern over the poor support

of the church's general interests. ''We regret to note...that there exists
a far too general disposition to ignore or slight theée general connéc~‘
tional enterprises.... We also, believe that only under the pressure of
such great undertakings can our denomination be welded into one great
connectional organization and thus be saved from that constant drift and
trend towards‘a selfigh énd destructive, independent, local congregation-—
alism.‘_'52 There was a possibilitf of joining with the United Brgthrén'in
1913 that fell t_hrough,53 but in the late 1920s the representaﬁives of the
200, 000 Methbdist Protestants began working with both the Northern and

Southern Methodist Episcopals, resulting in the 1939 formation of the

'MethodistAChurch, a powerful centrally organized body of over six million

Ameridans.s4 Following ﬁhe 1.938 minutes of the last Georgia Conference

of Methodist Protestants'was an appendix titléd; "The qury of Methodist
Union - With Questions and Answers." It summed up the reasons for joining
with the Mgthodist Episcopals by saying, "It has been generally conceeded
that the Methodist Protestant Church would have made better progress
throughout‘its history if there had always been the present superintendency
of thé President of the General Conference, or something simil;r'to thé:
Episcopacy in the other Methodisms." S

Centralization of power not only took place at church levels, but

also within government. The South survived the rough years following the

ACivil War, and enjoyed a few years of prosperity, but they were not to

last, In 1919-20 the farm market collapsed.56 100 years of planting the
same crops in the same furrows finally caught up with the South. Streams

and rivers were filled with red topsoil, swaths of land were lefi naked



16

by indiscriminate lumbering, and the boll weevil destroyed the cotton,

.Farmers who lost their land had to work as sharecroppers on farms for-

tunate enough to survive the crash.s7 ‘When the Great Depression hit the
country, the government decided to pool the resources of the country,
directing their use from one central location to prevent overlapping,
unproductive efforts. The rise of facism in the world meant an addition-
al need for centralization as the country prepared for war.

The Southern lifestyle was drastically altered.by the hérdships of

the '20s and '30s. The New Deal introduced crop rotation and mechanized

farming, asphalt roads replaced roads of red clay, gnd soon the new roads
we;e lined with telephoné piles carrying power to each farm, While this
helped the Southern farms, it-only further displaced the sharecroppers,
Mechanization meant less work for them, and the cities overflowed ﬁith_
the unemployed, After Pearl Harbor, many of the sharecroppers jﬁined the

service, and those who remained in the United States migrated to the

cities, finding jobs on the new assembly lines. By the time the war ended,

the Southern farms wefe modernized, and the industries established in the
cities, so the‘former sharecroppers returning from the war found jobs in
the factories and left their rural background behind. The availability |
of jobs in the cities, coupled with the modernization-of ﬁhe farms also
freed the children of the farm owners. No longer were they tied to tﬁe

land, but could mow leave their farms with no one suffering. The large

agricultural household was becoming extinct. With the migration to the

cities, Atlanta mushroomed; . covering the Cedar Grove farmlands with
suburban dwellings.' The members of Cedar Grove were no longer farmers,
but the new breed of city workers, still with the dirt of the farm cling-

ing. to their city shoes. Even today, the background of the adult members
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of Cedar Grove is predominantly rural., In addition to those who grew up

“in the rural Cedar Grove community, half of the suburban arrivals grew up

on farms, and over 80% of their parents have rural backgrounds.58

This movement from the pre-war rural to the post-war suburban cul-

Fure has demanded enormous adjustment., The large clans of Cedar Grove

have been rgplaced by the.small family unit of father, mother, and two ox
three children. The families no longer work together on their lamd, with
each member responsible for a set of chores,.but today one or.two repre—
sentatives of the family, usﬁally the father and sometimes also the mother,
support thé rest of the family., The familieé are no longer independent :
and individual, able to support thémsélvgs off of their land, but are now
in;erdépendent and corporate, supporting fhemselves by working within the
highly centralized American corporate society. They Qork for Delta, Gen-
eral Motors, Sears &“Rbebuck, Southern Bell, and Western Electric, corpor— °
at;ons that are worldwidel The world of €edar Grove ng longeér covers just
the Panthersville District, but the entire globe,

Living in the connected ﬁorld is a mixed bag for the people of.Cedaf
Grove, For the most part they have materiai security, mobility? multiplé
interests and a variety of social activities, In general, they believe

their lifestyles are correct for this day and age, and they would not want

"to give up what they have worked for. But they are confused and frustrated

by the insurmountable probléms of the connected world. They help;essly
face poor education, crime,.turbulent race relations, governmental cor;
ruption, polution, immorality, energy shortages, inflation, aund their list
continues.

Part of their frustration is with the church, They have faith that

the Church can answer most or all of today's problems,60 but they feel the
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Church is neglecting its responsibility to be their champiﬁn, and fight

.these evils. Most express disappointment in some of the recent develop~-

ments in the Church,61 and want some of the characteristics of the past
revived,62 a past that did not have such.problems,' They want a revi?al
of the optimism that they used to feel dn the Church.

An era that some of fhe members long for is the time before World
War II, when groups like the Ladies Auxiliary sent flowers and cards, or
made quilts for the sick. .They contribuéed to charities the moneyAthéy
made from socials and pagents. The Auxiliary had committees on Miésion
Educétion, Christian Education, Benevolence and Stewardship, Spiritual
Life, Literature, Thank Offerings, Young Peoples Unicn, Lifg_ﬁembershié,
Temperaﬁée and Christian Citizenship, and Pastors Ai&. Yet they were a
small grbup, interested in helping the community, not witﬁ‘enormoug,

impersonal .campaigns, but with small touches, In the meeting of the

Ladies Auxiliary of April 19, 1939, "It was announced that there was a

faithful member of our Sunday School that was unable to attend Sunday
School any more until they got them some shoes to wear. A donatiom,..
.75 was made to send for this purpose.”63

Another era remembered is the period following the War when Cedar
Grove and churches all over Fhe country experienced a boom, expanding its
membership and welcoming suburbia. 1In those days, biggest meant sest, for
one conquered by combining strengths as in the Depression and the War.
In 1961 Cedar Grqve broke ground for a larger church, tearing dowﬁ the’
small chapel erected in 1872, and plans were included for later expansion.
The churches were swolen on Sunday mornings., It seemed the churches could

do no wrong, people all over the country were turning to God, and the

problems of the world were being conquered by combined efforts. But in
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the '60s it all went sour. Vietnam, the population explosion, threat of

.nuclear holocost, ushered in an age of pessimism for a world beyond con-

trol,

Today the people of Cedar Grove want the Church to give them hope,

like it did in the old days, but the things hoped for are much bigger than

in the old days.

For John Morris, the problems weré restricted tb‘the Panthersville

‘District, and usually just his farm. God worried about the rain, and

Morris worried about seeing that the choreés were accomplished, Farm life

continued in much the same way for 100 years despite the hardships of the

Civil War and the présperity at the turn of the century. But the Civil

War jolted the Southern society off its foundation, leaving only the Church

. to provide order. The Church responded by centralizing, condemning con-

gregationalistic‘tendencies_and independent attitudes in order to provide

its people with a common structure in which they could put their faith,

‘The government did the same thing when the economy collépsed. Today both -~

church and state are highly centralized, and the individual is lost in

the crowd. Today optimism is difficult to maintain} because the problems
of-pollution, overpopulation; crime, poor education, and the many others
that have arisin out of the connected world can only be solved by the
connected world, and an individual alone is helpless, This impotent feel-
ing causes the people of Cedar Grove to long for the good old days when

an individual could feel a sende of accomplishment and progressioﬁ towérds
a goal. The people of Cedar Grove cannot return to the way ;hings were,
because their world is too big. As Cedar Grove approaches her 150th
birthday, she féces perhaps her greatest trial. She will have to find a

way to maintain individualistic identity. im a world of featureless faces.
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CEDAR GROVE METHODIST CHURGCH

Route 1, Conley, Georgla

Je Shelby Cook, Pastor




HISTORY OF CEDAR GROVE METHODIST CHURCH
(7. SHELBY GOOK, PASTOR /7C/ —(7¢ 4)

In the year 1822 the John B. Morris famlly traveled in covered
wagons from Abbeville County, South Carolina to Henry County, Georgla
and purchased land lot No. 11 in the Fifteenth District from the
original land grant holder, one Henry Meachamp, Sr, on November 21
of that year. A camp was set up and bonfires were kept all night

to keep wild animals at a safe distance until a dwelling could be
constructed, :

In 1828 the sald John Morris purchased the adjoining land lot
No. 22 from the original grant holders (note). By this time De-
Kalb County had been formed and all the area was in DeKalb County.
From this plot of land, just where the cemetery now stands, a lot
for a church was donated., That same year (1828) a log chapel was

erected and dedicated as Morris Church, in the Methodist Protes-~
tant Branch of Methodlsm.

Also in the year 1828 the Morris permanent home was bullt one
quarter of a mile from the church,.

Founders of the church are named as the said: John B. Morris,
four of his sons, Rev., G. Watt Morris, Rev., Elijah Morris, Garrett
L. Morris, Joseph Morris, and Allan J. Cook and John Moore.

A neighbor of that day made the remark that John Morris had
three sons who were preachers therefore he had to build a church
for them to have a place to preach., Many have since lived to thank
God for the vislon which led to the buillding of Morris Church (now
Cedar Grove), however that vision took form.

Two other sons, Ben and John went to Texas as young men and
John, the third preacher in the famlly became the father of John

Harvey Morris who became a prominent minister in the M. E. Church
South of the Texas and Oklahoma Conferences,

The eldest son, G. Watt Morris, was first pastor of Morris
Church and served for many years, It has been said that Uncle
Watt, in his preaching days, spoke with such ease and fluency that
one was reminded of rolling string off a ball. He lived to the
age of 93 years, long after the church was moved to its present
8ite, The aged minister made request that he be buried so that

hls head would be placed on the spot where the pulnit of the old
church stood, This was done.

In the days of the log church no heat was provided inside
the bullding. When a member of the congregation became too cold
he slipped outside to warm beside a bonfire in the yard.

#(note) T mention the two lend lots because land for the
original church and the prssent bullding ware donsted frow Ehe
two different land lots.
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In summer the meetings were held under a brush arbor, Fresh

green leafed boughs piled on for each day's service furnished cool
shade for worshippers.

Negro slaves went to church with their masters and occupled
rear seats provided. They repented and prailsed God at the same
altar and went home to plough the good earth together and walt for
the Lord's blessings, splritual and material. The black slave al-~
so took his turn at death with the white man and many of them were
laid to rest on the hill where his masters too now lle buried.

In 1865 during Sherman's march through Georgla, a regiment of
the Union Army camped on the hillside around the Morris Church. A
young daughter at the Morris homestead near by, Miss Huldah Morris,
felt the responsibility of the house as the men were away wearing
Confederate Uniforms, there remalning at home the aged grandfather
who was 111 and younger children also,

When the enemy's soldiers came to the Morris well for water,
Huldah; with a prayer in her heart, went to an officer telling him
of the 1illness there and asking for protection for the night. And
here follows one of the few recorded stories of kindness from the
Northern Army during the Civil War. The offlcer promised to send
a guard for the home, which he did; and as Huldah took up her vigll
inside a front window, and watched the armed figure move back and
forth in the cold moonlight she thanked God for her good fortune
and wished for the day,

In 1872 a beautiful frame chapel was bullt on the opposite
corner of the John Morris estate from the first building. This
lot was donated by Garret L., Morris, then owner of the property,
A school building was first built on the lot. Church services
wore held In the school building for some time before the church
bullding was completed, The church was bullt at a cost of $200,
Much material and labor were donated.

Many ministers through the years have said that they felt a
spiritual nearness in a pecullar way when they entered the church,
An. older person said he thought this was true because every nall
was placed with a loving prayer.

The new church was dedicated in 1872 with Dr. F. He M. Hen-
derson, a professor at Bowden College, preaching the sermon,

After some months the Rev, Ligh Morris planted a grove of
Cedar trees. TIn an informal discussion, “"Cedar Grove" was sug-
gosted as a name for the new church and the name atuck.

There were, at this time, about L£1fvy wnembers.
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The second Sunday in June 1877, while Dr. Henderson was still
pastor, the first Children's Day was observed with the welcome ad~
dress being made by Will Simpson, then five years of age., 1In 1954
Mr, Simpson, eighty years of age, was the only person still attend-
ing this fine annual celebration who remembered being on that first
Children's Day program.

The second Sunday in June has become 'Homecoming Day'! in a very
real sense to many who took part in the Childrent's Missionary Pro-

gram of yesteryear. June 8, 1952 marked the 75th year, the Diamond
Jubilee of this celebrated day.

About the year 1880 the first musical instrument was placed in
the church. Two young members, Miss Vickie Moore and Miss Fannle
Stubbs pledged themselves to the task of selling enough homemade
jellies to buy an organ. This was accomplished without too serilous
objectlon although these two were the only ones who felt the need
al the time. However, many years later, when the song leader, Mr.
Ben Morris, wanted to bring his violin to church—well--putting 1t
mildly, this was considered by some, to be a very forward suggestion,
not to say sacrlligious. Before too long though, all were enjoylng

the sweet stralns of Mr. Morris! violin with his daughter, Rose,
accompanying him at the organ.

In 1905 a collection plate was passed inside the churech for

the first time, Formerly, offerings were handed to a steward be-
fore or after the service,

Mr. George C. Morris and Mr, H. D. Moore were faithful plo=-
neers of Sunday School work here. The two served alternately for
fiftesn or twenty years, until Mr. Morris! death in 1914. Mr,

Moore served from that time until a short time before his death
in 1936,

About the year 1920 a youth work was organized under the name
of the Christian Endeavor Society, Since Unification this group
has been known as the Methodlst Youth Fellowships

In 1925 a woman's work was organized under the name of "The
Ladies Ald Soclety" with Mrs. H. D. Moore as the first President,
In 1934, when the Georgla Branch of the Woman's Missionary Auxil-
lary of the Methodlst Protestant Church was organized, the name of
the local soclety was changed to "The Woman's Auxiliary." Then in
the new Methodist Uniflcation setup, the name was changed to the
"omen's Soclety of Christlan Service,"

In the summer of 1930 the flrst Daily Vacation Bible School
was held, The term wes three weeks, The terms are shorter now but
évery year, since the flrat, a earefully planned vacation Bible
School has been held, This achonl hasa been a greant aid to the
church In the training of teachers as well an In the wreintng of
the children, :
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This church cooperated with other churches in this area 1n
the building and maintenance of Clifton Youth Training Camp 1932~
1942, This was an accredited training school for First and Second
Series courses under the direction of the Board of Christlan Edu-
cation of the Methodlist Protestant General Conference. Cedar
Grove sent from fifteen to twenty-four students every summer and
furnished two accredited teachers for the project,

In 1936 six Sunday School rooms were added to the one room
sanctuary., In 1948 an annex of three larger rooms were built in
the rear of the church. This gave room for ten classes with the
Men!s Bible Class meeting in the sanctuary.

In 1936 a Men's Brotherhood was organized. From 1938 to 1954
Cedar Grove and Clifton enjoyed the fellowship of being on the same
charge. In 1954 Cedar Grove was made a station church by the North
Georgia Conference and a full time minlister was employed for the
first time.

In 1949 a slx room parsonage was erected on a lot next to the
church. In 1961 a den, valued at approximately $2000 was added to
the six room parsonage. {100 was donated by the Griffin District.
The material was donated by members of the Church and the den was
buillt by men of the church, There was no hired labor,

Since 1952 our church hss malntained a nursery during the
preaching hour, for the convenience of mothers of young chilldren.

On Mother's Day 1952 a beautiful pot plant, then 70 years old
or older was loaned to the church again for the day. This lovely
White Arablan Jasmine was owned by Mr. Elmo Moore of Gladview
Gardens, ftlanta, and was given to him by his aged Aunt, Miss Liz-
zie Moore, 50 years ago. The plant was brought to the church for
special occasions, weddings, etc., many times and 1ts worth grew
with the years as we were reminded of Miss Lizzle and her slster,
Miss Ellen, who, with such devotion, brought beautiful fresh
flowers to the church every time the doors were opened, for the
many years that they were active members here, Also the Elmo
Moores, who for twenty years, so loyally aided in the success of
speclal days at the church by their generous floral contributlons.

A new brick educational building was completed and "Open House"
was observed on a cold, cold Sunday afternoon in February, 1958,
Building cost% was §$17,500; Merrill Clark, contractor,

Around 1810 or 1912 a plano was purchased to replace the old
organ. The young people of Cedar Grove worked for and purchased
an electronlc organ for the church in the spring of 1960,

In 1962 Cedar Grove was taken from the Griffin District and
plsced 1In the Atlanta-Decatur~Oxfaord District. The Church now
has a full Conference Program with 21) five roquired Commlssitna
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organized and functioning-Commissions on (1) Missions (2) Educa-
tion (&) Membership and Zvangelism (4) Stewardship and Finance (5)
Christian Social Concerns., The Woman's Soclety of Christian Ser-
vice and Methodist Youth Fellowship are active in the local church,
Sub-District (Tri-County), district and conference levels, The

0fficial Board meets regularly and does a fine job with the coopera-
tion and help of all 1ts members,

Following 1s a report of the Bullding Committee which was made
to the Fourth Quarterly Conference April 29, 1965:

The Bullding Committee held its first meeting November 25, 1962,

A called Quarterly Conference, December 2, 1962, gave the Committee
authority to employ a structural engineer and develop a sound fl-
nancial plan for the church building. These were presented to the
Church Conference on December 28 and approved. Then on January 27,
1963 they were presented to the Quarterly Conference and approved.

On January 28, bids were opened by the Committee. February 14 the
Commlttee voted to let the contract on a cost plus basis with M. W.
Buttrill, Contractor,.

The ground breaking ceremony, led by Dr., Delma L. Hagood,
District Superintendent and the Reverend J. Shelby Cook, pastor,
was held February 17, 1963. Construction began the very next daye.

A Crusade Committee with I. L. McPherson, Chairman, was apw
polnted to raise {10,000 in cash by Victory Sunday, April 14, 1963
(haster Sunday)s This Committee was also given the authority to
1y all new furnishings for the sanctuary. All cash not used for
fronishings was applled toward the bullding loan, It 18 fully alr-
¢ o3itioned and has central heating, The new sanctuary is of Co-
leiiial Architecture with approximately 2500 square feet of floor

sonte, It has a seating capaclty of 250, with two addlitional class
roocms and cholr rooms,

The first service was held in the new sanchbuary on May 5,
1063, The Formal Open House was held on Childrents Day, June 9,
106%. The educational building was dedicated and the sanctuary
was coasecrated. Methodlst Church buildings must be free of ine-
¢ hadness before they can be dedicated, therefore, only the edu-
ceZsonal unlt was dedleated on June 9, Services were led by Dre
Dolma L. Hagood and the Reverend J. Shelby Cooks

Following 18 the approximate estimated replacement value of
our Church Plantsg

Sanctuary $24,000
Sanctuary furnishings 4,200
Educational Building 30,000
Educational furnishings 3,000
Youth bullding 5,000
Parsonege and Turnishingoe 14,000
4 acres land valued at - 10,000

¥B8,200 m-q T A T,
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IListed below are the bullding accomplishments and approximate
cost of each for the Conference Year 1962-633

1, Pald off indebtedness on Educational Building § 3,608
2, Tiled floor in Educational Bullding 800
ds Bullt Sanctuary 24,000
4. FPurnished Sanctuary 4,090
Total amount spent 32,490
Indebtedness incurred 19,000
Total Cash ralsed 15,490

The Bullding Committee was: J. T. McGarlty, Chairmang Mrs.
Jo T« McGarlity, Roy Hatcher, Merrill Clark, Robert Harkness, M.
G. Haley, Frank Reagin and J. Shelby Cook.

In May 1963, the framé church bullt in 1872 was torn away.
The last three rooms (which were added in 1948) were moved to the
back of the lot when construction was begun on the new sanctuary.
This 1s now used as our Youth Building.

PASTORS AS REMEMBERED¢

1828 e EwR s e === Waks Moprlia

Elijah Morris
1872 - e . = ®w = .« &= QDo Ny M Honderson
1883 HARBAESEEEN

1892-1904 also 1908

1905-1906 -
1906-1910 ~
1910-1911 =
1911-1912 -
1912-1913

R T D T B I BN B B

Je McD. Radford, Sr,
Robert McGarity
John D. Keith

Je McDs Radford
John Anderson

= e = 5 C. B. McDaniel
1913"1914‘- = e = = - @ w = e
1914~1983 = = = = = - = J. Me Reynolds
1084=]1087 = » = = = - = W, M. Hunton
1927-1929 = = = - - - emeo - oa
182919060 = = & = & » & & = - = A: G, Iymch
1930-193L =~ = = = » = = = = = = (¢, Ds Martin
lOelER = = & % & & 5 & 28 s o E S
1932-1940 = = = = = = = -~ = = F, D. Smlth
1840104 * = = s am e E =S % @& =58 - -
10411942 = = = = = =« = = = = = J, F, Thompson
1942-1943 =» = = = = = = = = = = Folix Sutphen
104321044 = = = = = = = = = = ° =9 .- o=
194421945 = = » = = = = = = = = Joal Canp
1945<1046 = = = = = = = « = = = Rdgar A. Padgety

1946-1947

- wWm ey wn R e e



1947<196]1 = = = = = = = « = « « [loyd W, Jackson

19611054 = = = = = = « « = - F, 0. Shirley
1964419066 » = = =~ = = ®aw s C. We Grishem
LUEORLODE = = & & & & » = & e Robert L. Ramsey

1958=1959 =« = =+ ® = = = - = =
1959"1961""‘—'---—-—-4

1961~ T -

Fe Co Hlcks
Bernard K. Henry
Js Shelby Cook

P-t 2 11

We would not try to list the names of the men and women who have
shared in this labor of love in a sacrificlal way, realizing that
the prayers of the devout and patient spirits may have done as
much toward keeping the candle aglow as have those who have been
able to consecrate leadership ability to God's Kingdom in this
small corner of the earths: Knowing that our Divine Father will
take account, we loave to Him the task of recognition and reward,

The church now has about 240 members and an average Church
School attendance of around 100s

S1xty or seventy yocars seems to be the 1life span of cedar
trees in thils part of thoe coun“ry and pines come up unbidden;
8o we now have the prettiest llttle church you ever saw in the
midst of the prettiest plne grove Cod ever grew-—and the name 1sa
CEDAR GROVE.

Submitted by:
Nell H. Moore, 1954

(Revised and additions made
in 19643 printed for Childw
rent's Day, June 14, 1964)

NOTE OF APPRECIATION:

I am endebted to a number of people for the information which
made possible this brief sketch of a long and rich church history.
Some of those who have already pussed ares Mrs, Tavie Moore, Mr,
Ben Morris, My Lynn Moore, Rev. John Harvey Morris, Mrs. Oda Moore,
Miss Fay Morris, Mr. and Mrs., John Bond, Mlss Nannie Bond and Mrs,
Mollie Moore. Also many of you of my own genoration have been in-
tercsted and helpful in many ways. You have searched attlcs and
old chests for records, you have made trips with m¢ and for me. in
gearch of an approximated date or another minlsterts namesy I am
sincerely grateful to all,

e MPr8e. Rs Ma (Well Haobtoher) Moora
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CEDAR GROVE METHODIST

135-Year Old Church
Dedicates New Facilities

A church that Is 135 years old that began as a log cabin Is
putting new Iife into its program In one of DeKalb County’s

exploding surburban areas.

To emphasize its new found
growth, the church=-Cedar
Grove Methodlst—held Home~
coming, Chlldren’s Day, and de=
dicatory services for $60,000
worth of new facllities,

Begun as a log chapel, where
Negro slaves occupled rear
seats provided by their mas=-
ters, the church has since grown
into a congregationof 240 mem-
bers with a full conference pro=
grarm.

A $30,000 sanctuary was con-
gsecrated and an educational
building dedicated. Methodist
Church bulldings must be free
of indehtedness hefore they can
be dedlcated, therefore only the
educational unit will dedlcated

June 9.

Services were led by Dr, Del=
ma L. Hagoocd, superintendent
of the Atlanta=Decatur-Oxford
District, and the Rev, ], Shelby
Cook, pastor,

THE FORMAL open house
was held for the new alr con-
ditioned sanctuary which was
completed last month. Ground
was broken on February 17 and
constructlon was begun the fol-
lowing day.

In 1828, John B. Merris do=
nated the land for the church,
having come with his family
in 1822 in covered wagonsfrom
Abbeville County, 8, C, to Henry
County, Ga. By 1828 DeKalb
County had been formed and
the church area was in Dew
Kalb, The new log chapel was
dedicated as Merris Church
in the Methodist Protestant
Branch of Methodism,

oEw

THE FOUNDERS of the
church were John B. Morris;
four of his sons, Rev. G. Watt
Morris, Rev, Elijah Morris,,
Garret L, Morris and Joseph
Morris; and Allan ], Cook and

John Moore (another son of the
senlor Rev. M. Morris also was
a minister).

A neighbor of that day [s
said to have remarked that John
Morris had three sons whowere
preachers and therefore had to
build a church for them to have
a place to preach.

The eldest Morris son, the
Rev. G, Watt Morris, was the
first pastor of Morris Chruch,
It is sald that he spoke with
such ease and fluency in his
preaching days that one was re=
minded of rolling string from
a ball. He lived to be 93, dy-

N AR A B DA T A AR 13-

ing long after the church was
moved te lts present site. He
requested that he he huried so
that his head would be on the
spot where the pulpit of the
old church stood. This was done,

In summer the meetings were
held in a brush arbor, and in
winter, since no heat was pro=
vided inside the log church, a
mermnber of the congregation who
became too cold slipped out=
slde to warm beside a bonfire
in the yard,

Ok

IN 1865 during Sherman's

march through Georgia, a re=

giment of Union Army.camped .

on the hill around the Merris
Church, A young daughté® at
the Morris homentead Harh

Miss Huldah Morris, ¥
Unlon officer at the we

the soldiers came for S;emr

aend asked for and received
protection for her sick grand=
father, The other men of the
household were serving in the
Confederate Army.

+In 1872 a frame chapesl was
built about a mile from the
orginal Morris Church, This
land was donated by Garrat L,
Morris. The Rev. Lige Morris
planted & grove of Cedar trees
and ‘’Cedar Grove” 'was sug-
gested as a name for the new
church, Since that time, most of
the cedar trees have died and
pine trees have comeup intheir
place. The church had about 50
members in 1872,

. N

THE FIRST musical {nstru=
ment, an orgen, was placed in
the church in 1880, It had been
bought with proceeds{rom Miss

Vickie Moore*s and Miss Fannle

Stubbs’ homemade Jelly sales.
In 1905 & collection plate was
passed {nside the churchfor the
Iirst time. Formerly, offerings
were handed to a steward before
or after the service.

In 1936 six Sunday school
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‘Patchwork Rabbit’
Wins Ceramic Award

Betty Dantzler of Decatur was
awarded seven ribbons and the
highest award in Hobby Ceramics
at the twenty-third National Ce-
ramic Manufacturers Association
show at the Atlanta Hilton.

Her “‘Patchwork Rabbit” earned
her the “Freddy” Award, given by
the Popular Ceramic. -

Ms. Dantzler works from Hills
Hobby Shop in Decatur.

Candidate Commends

Good 'Sportsmanship’

In three campaigns, it's never
happened to her before and it shows
good sportmanship,

That was the reaction of Betty
Aaron, incumbent representative
from the 54th district, to a tele-
phone call from opponent Daniel
Bamett congratulating her on her
re-election.

Barnett came in third in his race

against Rep. Aaron and Bobby
King.

Avondale Estates
Plans Flea Market

Plans are underway for the an-
nual city-wide flea market to be
held October 6 in Avondale Estates.

The sale, to include “everything
from junk to antiques” will be held
in the parking lot of C&S Bank, 52
Noirth Avondale Road.

Persons wanting to reserve selling
space may telephone Lee Shelnutt
at 289-0101.

Kindermusik Classes
Offered At College

Classes in Kindermusik, a spe-
cialized form of music education for
children ages four through six are
being formed for the fall.

Classes are offered through the
college’s personal enrichrnent pro-
gram.

Instruction areas include learning
songs, ear training, note reading
:..:Eoimmﬂon and creative activi-
ties, acquaintance with orchestral
Instruments and literature of many
periods, movement to music and
preparation for ingtrumental lessons
through finger games.

One of the instructors, Frankie
Cain, said, “Note reading and ear
training are emphasized, Acquaint-
ance with many different instru-
ments is achieved by allowing the
students to experiment with the
instruments of the orchestra as well
as the plano, guitar, autoharp and
others. They listen i a variety of
music and composers.”

Phone 469-0083 or 468-6570 for
more information.

AIRMAN ALVA THOMAS
TAKES PART IN EXERCISE

Airman lst Class Alva L. Thomas,
son of Sheila T. Murray and stepson of
Richard Murray of Stephenson Road,
Stone Mountain, has participated in
Crested Cap '84, a short term deploy-
ment of the 4th Tactical Fighter Wing
from Seymour Johnson Air Force
Base,N.C. to Ramstein Air Base, West
Germany.

PVT. JEFFREY NEAL.-
PROCMOTED IN MARINES
Marine Pvt. Jeffrey J. Neal, son of
Cecil and Sarah Neal of Mark Trail,
Decatur, has been promoted to his

present tank while serving E:.wr 4th
Marine Aircralt Wing, Naval Air Sta-
tion, Marietta.
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At Cedar Grove One-room School

By HELEN ORDNER

Kids everywhere are savoring
the end of summer and preparing
themselves for the return to
classes.

Schools have changed, but
kids have had these same mixed
feelings since the days of the one-
room schoolhouse, according to
Mrs. J.W. Clark. A lifelong resi-
dent of the Cedar Greve Commu-
nity, she can recall the anticipa-
tion of going back to school. A far
cry from today’s children, she
spent the summers working with
her family in the cotton fields.

Mrs. Clark, who was Fay
Moore when she started school in
Cedar Grove’s one-room school-
house in 1899, lived just across
the road.

When the big, brass school
bell, audible for miles around,
rang in the early mornings, she
and her seven brothers and sisters
would leave for classes.

BOYS SAT on one side of the
building and girls on the other,
back in those days. A partition
ran hetween the two sexes, but it
did not prevent their throwing
wadded-up paper balls at each
other, she recalls.

Girls had a bucket of well
water and a dipper on their side
of the room, as the boys did on
theirs.

Up the hill was a “two-hole
privy,” a luxury provided only for
girls.

Kids “‘were supposed to be
studying”’ while the teacher
taught other classes, M. Clark
said. She can recall, though, that
seated near the long windows you
could see droves of cattle being
driven down East McDonough
Road (now Bouldercrest) to mar-
ket, or watch clouds hlowing
about in imaginative patters.

The teacher, a Mr. Jackson,
sat on a raised stage at the front
of the school, overlooking his
whole domain. He maintained
discipline with the free use of a
switch and began classes with
morning prayer and Bible read-
ings.

Scholars in those day carried a
tin syrup bucket with a cold
sweet potato for lunch, or Mrs.

all the brand name fashions to
prepare for back to school then,

but they had their own rituals.

For special occasions, young
Fay’s mother would curl her
blond hair around paper strips
fastened with straight pins.
Later, there was a curling iron
warmed in the glass chimney of a
lamp.

Girls then wore layers of petti-
coats, “miles around,” which
were starched stiff and iromed
with a flat iron heated in the
fireplace — covering their one-
piece ‘‘teddies.”

Middy blouses were the fad,
along with high-button shoes.
She had one pair for school, one

for Sundays. Her father attached -

new soles to shoes for his eight
children.

MRS. CLARK is now a spir-
ited 91-year-old great grand-
mother and devoted Braves fan,
who still lives within a half-mile
of her birthplace and the school
she attended for seven years.

She still does exquisite needie-
work which is evident throughout
her comfortable two-story home.
She had scant time for an inter-
view as she was itching to be in

"the kitchen where she was in the

midst of canning tomatoes.

Her roots are deep within the
Cedar Grove community which
was settled by her ancestors, the
Morris and Moore families. Her
life has revolved about the Meth-

-odist Church there and the school

in its changing roles.

Believed to be the only one-
room school still in existence in
DeKalb County, it was formed
after her grandfather, Garrett L.
Morris,
school for $25 to the early-day
Cedar Grove Methodist Church.
It sits on the grounds of the
church which was founded by
another ancestor, John Morris.

In later years, the school has
served as a community center,
but membership has dwindled.

Mrs. Clark shares recollections
of school days with her former
classmate, Maud Moore Hardin
of Cedar .Grove, Mrs. Hardin's
husband, Arnold, and her sister,
Ruth Moore Dobbs. They have

school house is uncertain. Those
who care for it hope to find a new
owner who will move it — a
happy ending like the one which
emerged recently for the antebel-
lum Towers-Fowler-Thompson
house on Rockbridge Road. The
church is willing to give it to a
new Owner.

“It's in the way of progress,”
savs Bob O'Neil, chairman of the
Cedar Grove United Methodist
Church’s buiding committee. The
building will probably be demo-
lished no later than October 1.

Anyone who can move the
sturdy old building and find a
new purpose for it may telephone
Mr. O’'Neil at 241-6333.

She |

Mrs. Fay Clark is a wallking-
still somewhat rural Cedar (
remembers classes in the one
hopes that the offer of the Ce
building to a new owner will s

Onc

Mrs. Fay Clark and her daug
porch of the Cedar Grove {
formerly the community’s om
soon be demolished unless a o

deeded property for a

FUNDRAISING .
MADE

Gold C Values Books
practically sell themselves!

Any non-profit organization can sell Gold C
Values Books. They're filled with $2,000 in coupons got
discounts at popular locations all over Metro Atlanta. P
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AIRMAN ALVA THOMAS
TAKES PART IN EXERCISE
Airman 1st Class Alva L. Thomas,
son of Sheila T. Murray and stepson of
Richard Murray of Stephenson Road,
Stone Mountain, has participated in
Crested Cap '84, a short term deploy-
ment of the 4th Tactical Fighter Wing
from Seymour Johnson Air Force

Base,N.C. to Ramstein Air Base, West'

Germany.

PVT. JEFFREY NEAL
PROMOTED IN MARINES

Marine Pvt. Jeffrey J. Neal, son of
Cecil and Sarah Neal of Mark Trail,
Decatur, has been promoted to his
present rank while serving with 4th
Marine Aircraft Wing, Naval Air Sta-
tion, Marietta.

Prize-winner

Alex Ayers, Stone Mountain
High, right, receives the Ricken-
backer Trophy from Roger
Dancz, festival director for the
University of Georgin’s Jazz Fes-
tival of Champions. Stone Moun-
tain and Redan high school musi-
cians brought home honors.

FREE Accounting Software
with HARD DISC SYSTEM

CALL FOR PRIVATE
DEMONSTRATION

482-4868

TACS/GEORGIA

Tax & Accounting Computer Speciolists
4844 Moin $ireet :
Lithonia, GA
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would leave for classes.

BOYS SAT on one side of the
building and girls on the other,
back in those days. A partition
ran between the two sexes, but it
did not prevent their throwing
wadded-up paper balls at each
other, she recalls,

Girls had a bucket of well
water and a dipper on their side
of the room, as the boys did on
theirs.

Up the hill was a “‘twe-hole
privy,” a luxury provided only for
girls.

Kids “‘were supposed to be
studying’' while the teacher
taught other classes, Mrs. Clark
said. She can recall, though, that
seated near the long windows you
could see droves of cattle being
driven down East McDonough
Road (now Bouldercrest) to mar-
ket, or watch clouds blowing
about in imaginative patters,

The teacher, a Mr. Jackson,
sat on a raised stage at the front
of the school, overlooking his
whole domain. He maintained
discipline with the free use of a
switch and bhegan classes with
morning prayer and Bible read-
ings. :
Scholars in those day carried a
tin syrup bucket with a cold
sweet potato for lunch, or Mrs.
Clark says, “‘they poked a hole in
a biscuit and poured syrup in it.”
Her family had lunch at home as
they lived so near.

KIDS DIDN'T go cut and buy

Lea ..n.—._..uwmﬂu..l.c‘nﬁ—.lﬂmﬁﬂl Erana-
mother and devoted Braves fan,
who still lives within a half-mile
of her birthplace and the school
she attended for seven years.

She still does exquinite needle-
work which is evident throughout
her comfortable two-story home.
She had scant time for an inter-
view as she was itching to be in

“the kitchen where she was in the
midst of canning tomatoes.

Her roots are deep within the
Cedar Grove community which
was settled by her ancestors, the
Morris and Moore families. Her
life has revolved about the Meth-

-odist Church there and the school
in its changing roles. - )

Believed to be the only one-
room school still in existence in
DeKalb County, it was formed
after her grandfather, Garrett L.

Morris, deeded property for a

school for $256 to the early-day
Cedar Grove Methodist Church,
It sits on the grounds of the
church which was founded by
another ancestor, John Morris.

In later years, the school has
served as a community center,
but membership has dwindled.

Mrs. Clark shares recollections
of school days with her former
classmate, Maud Moore Hardin

of Cedar Grove, Mrs. Hardin's .

husband, Arnold, and her sister,
Ruth Moore Dobbs. They have
seen Cedar Grove change from an
insulated community of dairies

and farms, as surhurbia has.

continued to edge into its once-
open fields.

THE FUTURE of the old

centerpiece
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3308 MEMORIAL DRIVE 289-0888
5706 MEMORIAL DRIVE STN. MTN. 292-8446
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